
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

July 12, 2012 

7 p.m. Regular Meeting   

Newberg Public Safety Building   

       401 E. Third Street 

 
I.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR (items are considered routine and are not discussed unless requested by the 
commissioners) 

 1. Approval of June 14, 2012 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS  (5 minute maximum per person) 
 1. For items not listed on the agenda 
 

V. QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS  (complete registration form to give testimony - 5 minute maximum per 
person, unless otherwise set by majority motion of the Planning Commission).  No new public hearings after 10 
p.m. except by majority vote of the Planning Commissioners. 

 

APPLICANT/OWNER:  Chehalem Park and Recreation District 

REQUEST: Design review/historic review for a Concept Master Site Development Plan for the full build-

out of the site; Variance to reduce off-street parking for the full build-out to 53 spaces; Design 

review/historic review for remodeling the gymnasium into a ballroom, and construction of a 

new northern entrance to the ballroom.   

LOCATION: 415 E. Sheridan Street 

TAX LOTS: 3218DD-15700 

FILE NO.: HISD-12-002/DR2-12-010/VAR-12-001 

ORDER NO.: 2012-04 

CRITERIA: Newberg Development Code Sections 15.215.040, 15.220.020, 15.220.050(B), 15.344.030, 

15.430.010 
 

VI. ITEMS FROM STAFF 
 1. Update on Council items 
 2. Other reports, letters, or correspondence 
 3. Next Planning Commission Meetings: 
  a.   July 19, 2012- Special meeting on Transporation Plan 
  b.   August 9, 2012 
 

VII. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS 
 

VIII. ADJOURN  

 

 

 

FOR QUESTIONS PLEASE STOP BY, OR CALL 503-537-1240, PLANNING & BUILDING DEPT. - P.O. BOX 970 - 414 E. FIRST 

STREET   

 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: 

In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City Recorder’s office of any special physical accommodations 

you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, 

please contact the city recorder at (503) 537-1283. For TRS services please dial 711. 
 

 
1 of 251



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (June 14 2012) Page 1 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

June 14, 2012 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 

Newberg Public Safety Building 

401 E. Third Street 

 

TO BE APPROVED AT THE JULY 12, 2012 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER: 

 

Chair Thomas Barnes opened the meeting at 7:00 p.m.  

 

II. ROLL CALL: 

 

Present: Thomas Barnes, Chair Cathy Stuhr, Vice Chair 

 Art Smith Lon Wall 

 Philip Smith Gary Bliss  

 Mayor Bob Andrews, Ex-Officio Kale Rogers, Student PC 

 

Absent: Allyn Edwards (excused) 

 

Staff Present: Barton Brierley, Planning & Building Director 

 Steve Olson, Associate Planner 

 Jessica Nunley, Assistant Planner 

 DawnKaren Bevill, Minutes Recorder 

 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 

Approval of the May 10, 2012 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

 

MOTION #1:  Bliss/Stuhr approve the minutes from the Planning Commission Meeting of May 10, 2012. 

Motion carried (6 Yes/ 0 No/ 1 Absent [Edwards]). 

 

IV. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE FLOOR: 

 

No items were brought forward. 

 

IV. QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

APPLICANT:  MJG Development, Inc. 

APPELLANT:  Todd Waters 

REQUEST:  Appeal of the approval of the Oak Grove Apartment project 

LOCATION: 3411 Hayes Street 

TAX LOTS: 3216-02016 and 3216-02017 

FILE NO.: PAR-12-002, DR2-12-003, ADJP-12-002, and ADJC-12-001 

ORDER NO.: 2012-03 

CRITERIA:  Newberg Development Code sections 15.210, 15.230, 15.235, 15.310, 15.405, Appendix A, B 

& File No. PUD-07-04/ADJ-131-04. 

 

 

 
2 of 251



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (June 14 2012) Page 2 
 

 

 

Opening of the Hearing: 

Chair Barnes read ORS §197.763 and opened the hearing.  He asked the Commissioners for any abstentions, 

conflicts of interests, or objections to jurisdiction.  Commissioner Bliss is familiar with the applicant who is a 

personal friend and past client but stated this will not affect his decision in this matter. 

 

Jessica Nunley presented the staff report (see official meeting packet for details), and used a PowerPoint 

presentation. The application was deemed complete April 20, 2012.  The Planning and Building Director 

approved the proposal on May 10, 2012.  The Planning Director’s decision was appealed to the Planning 

Commission on May 24, 2012, by Todd Waters.  Ms. Nunley noted new information that was not included in 

the meeting packet: The applicant has proposed to submit a revised site plan that would include the two off-

street parking spaces; that would make the property line adjustment no longer necessary.  The apartment project 

is located in an area that has been planned and zoned for an apartment development as part of the Springbrook 

Oaks Specific Plan.  This particular parcel is Phase 5 of a planned unit development project.  The proposed 

apartment complex would have 84 units contained in seven different buildings that would range from two to 

three stories in height.  The buildings would be oriented to the perimeters of the property, including along Hayes 

Street, with the drive aisles and parking spaces located in the interior of the property.   

 

The appellant, Todd Waters, has listed four main objections to the Planning Director’s decision.  1. The 

proposal is for 84 units instead of 60 units; which the appellant contends that only 60 units should be permitted 

on the site due to the previous approval of PUD-07-04.  Staff finds that the proposal for 84 units meets the 

density requirements for the zone.  The applicant is now proposing 84 multi-family units for the property, which 

meets the intent of the previous PUD proposal to provide multi-family units within the project area in the final 

phase.  2. Number of off-street parking spaces provided, and permitting on-street parking.  The appellant 

contends that there are not adequate parking spaces available for the project, and that the Planning Director 

erred when approving the requested Code adjustment to the number of required off-street parking spaces.  The 

appellant also does not believe that Hayes Street can be used for on-street parking.  The applicant proposed to 

revise the site plan to include the two additional off-street parking spaces in accordance with the Code.  The 

applicant requests the Planning Commission consider the code adjustment request withdrawn, and instead have 

the Planning Commission add a condition of approval to submit a revised site plan showing 125 off-street 

parking spaces.   Regarding the on-street parking, Hayes Street is a major collector roadway, with an existing 

curb-to-curb pavement width of 46 feet.  The Development Code states that on-street parking is permitted with 

the approval of the Director, and there is available width for two bike lanes, two travel lanes, and parking along 

the north side.  3.  Path to Fred Meyer is proposed as stairs, not a ramp.  The appellant contends that the 

proposed path to Fred Meyer must be a ramp in order to comply with the Development Code.  Staff stated the 

project will be compliant with the applicable building code and ADA requirements.  4.  Stream corridor 

protection/barrier.  The appellant contends that the stream corridor will be polluted by proximity to the 

apartments.  Staff stated the project proposal divides the stream corridor into its own tract as part of the 

partition, thus the apartment complex would be on a separate parcel adjacent to the stream corridor.  In addition, 

the stream corridor is protected by separate provisions in the Development Code.  The applicant will submit a 

plan showing how the stream corridor will be protected during construction. 

 

Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends the Planning Commission adopt Order 2012-03; approving the 

requested project, with the revised findings in Exhibit A and the revised conditions of approval in Exhibit B. 

 

Mike Gougler, applicant for Oak Grove Apartments, explained to the commission and audience that he had 

received 36 letters of concern and apologized for not holding a community meeting.  The apartments are 

extremely difficult to design.  The units are going to be unique in Newberg as all will be equipped with air 

conditioning.  Windows will not be enclosed and all units are equipped with a fresh air economizer; a high-

 
3 of 251



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (June 14 2012) Page 3 
 

volume, low noise air system.  The build quality of the units will exceed the building code and provide tenants 

with healthy, quiet, apartments.  Smoking will not be permitted in the units.  Pets will be allowed with a deposit 

and at the northwest corner a strip of fenced land will be provided for dog walking.  There will be a place for a 

community vegetable garden as well.   All units have fire extinguishers and the complex will have heated, 

secure storage units with cages.  The units are going to take advantage of an existing water detention and a 

treatment pond.  High-definition security cameras will be on-site providing safety for the tenants.  Of the 36 

letters, most were concerned with traffic.  He provided traffic studies and tried to design the project to appeal to 

professionals and retired people.  The project will use dark skies lighting fixtures.  The interior will have high-

end trim.  

 

Questions: 

Commissioner Bliss asked in regard to the criteria, from the curbside tire to the outside edge of the rearview 

mirror measures seven-feet and does not allow distance for a bike to pass a parked car.  An eight-foot parking 

with six-foot bike lane would offer better distance.  Mr. Gougler would definitely do that if the Planning 

Department agrees to it.  Commissioner Bliss asked what type of lighting will be used for outside parking areas.  

Mr. Gougler stated shoebox lighting will be used; an extensive lighting plan was provided to the Planning 

Department.  Acorn lights will not be used. 

 

Commissioner Art Smith asked how extensive the ban on smoking is.   Mr. Gougler stated his intent is to make 

sure there is no smoking on the landings but will designate some exterior areas for people to smoke which have 

proper ventilation, but out of the rain. 

 

TIME – 7:43 PM 

  

Proponents:   

Rick Rogers, Habitat for Humanity, is in favor of the project and stated high density residential apartments are 

lacking in Newberg.  There is a need for apartment housing.  His hope is the addition of 84 units will help the 

existing rental rates in Newberg. 

 

Joe Schieve works for the Saunders Company and is the project manager.  In regards to the overall Springbrook 

Oaks, he has been involved in the civil development elements and infrastructure for the projects, and worked 

with the traffic engineer in looking at the impact analysis.  Hayes Street is far below its capacity.  The dual 

access in and out of the site for safety, although not required, was appreciated by the Fire Marshal.  He did 

research regarding parking spaces and he found in similar cities he has worked in that are of a similar size, 

required 1.5 minimum parking spaces per apartment unit; the City of Newberg requires 1.7.  Also, all the lights 

will be fully shielded and will stay below the half foot candle at the property line. 

 

Commissioner Stuhr stated with respect to parking on Hayes Street, there has been much public concern 

regarding the sight distance.  Will parking be allowed all along that area?  Mr. Schieve replied the City has a 

vision triangle and that will be complied with.  

 

Opponents: 

Todd Waters, the appellant, stated he is concerned in keeping the neighborhood nice and this project will change 

the neighborhood quite a bit.  His comments are included in the appeal application, (see meeting packet for 

details.) This would cause a 40% increase in apartment units from 60 to 84 units and many parking problems.  

There have already been two changes to the design plan: moving the east location of the trash receptacle, and the 

increased number of off-street parking, and the developer has already mentioned he erred in not including the 

neighbors in the design process.  The homeowner minutes for the past two years have shown parking as a major 

issue.  Compensating for lack of parking by putting cars on the street will not work.  The street is fenced on both 

sides; no front doors face Hayes Street.  Sixty units was the approved number in the original 2004 plan, and 

 
4 of 251



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (June 14 2012) Page 4 
 

nowhere in the previous reports is it listed as a minimum; but listed as a maximum twice. The change to 84 

units changes the parking from the original plan.  The total required parking spaces is as he understands it 

should total 165 spaces according to the language in the City Code.   The project calculation is different. The 

developer proposes only 123 off-street spaces plus a very questionable 18 on-street spaces equaling 141 spaces.  

His other objections are in regard to the ramp that is needed to Fred Meyer, but the developer only proposes 

steps.  Also, there is no barrier between the apartments and the stream corridor.   Mr. Waters stated the on-street 

parking is his major objection.  He wishes there could have been a meeting earlier with the residents of the 

neighborhood to help work these issues out. 

 

Commissioner Wall asked if Mr. Waters would still object to the project if it was specified for 60 units.  Mr. 

Waters replied 60 units with no on-street parking.  

 

Brian Davis stated many of his concerns have already been voiced by Mr. Waters.   He too is concerned in 

adding 84 units with two cars per unit, which will make it very difficult to park and he fears it will affect the 

children playing and cause more traffic flow through the area.   This will not fit with the neighborhood.  If the 

code stated 60 units are the maximum, 84 units should not be allowed. 

 

Undecided: 

Brian Francis owns the 99W Drive-In Theater and is concerned with the lighting plan.  He is glad to hear acorn 

lighting will not be used.  He is also concerned with the parking area light and asked what kind of exterior 

lighting will be used on the outside of the buildings.  Also, along the stream corridor, will the trees be trimmed 

along that line?  The trees help darken the area for better effect on the movie screen. 

 

Judy Moshberger lives across the street from the proposed apartment project.  She appreciates the dumpster 

location being moved but is concerned with the parking and traffic.   Many drive up Hayes Street and cut 

through the townhomes to Fred Meyer.  Both ends of the streets have signs for local traffic only but they do not 

help.  Now a driveway and 84 units being added will cause the same thing; cutting through to Fred Meyer to 

avoid Hayes Street and Brutscher Street.  She has no problem with the design, but the traffic needs to be 

addressed.  As long as there is a driveway on Oak Grove Street there will be an issue.  If there was a way to 

close that driveway it would help. 

 

Commissioner Philip Smith asked if the ideal situation is to close off the access.  What other possible solutions 

are there if the Fire Marshal does not approve of that?  Ms. Moshberger replied there is another driveway off of 

Brutscher and Springbrook, as well.  Commissioner Smith suggested a speed bump.  Ms. Moshberger stated that 

would be very helpful. 

 

Commissioner Stuhr asked if this issue has been brought before the Traffic Safety Commission.  Ms. 

Moshberger replied yes it was in the past, although she was not present at those meetings.   She thinks that is 

why the local access only signs were put up, but nothing else was done. Making it less convenient as a 

thoroughfare would be appreciated. 

 

TIME – 8:24 PM 

 

Rebuttal: 

Mike Gougler stated yes, he can build 60 units, but they will have to be subsidized.  He has been approached to 

do a Section 8 housing unit on that site, but the only way to make the economics work is to build 84 units.  He 

posted his phone number and address and only had one person contact him directly regarding project concerns.  

Changes have been made and submitted to the City hoping to be proactive.  His financial model is available for 

anyone on the Planning Commission and City Council to review. 

 

 
5 of 251



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (June 14 2012) Page 5 
 

Commissioner Philip Smith asked for clarification regarding government subsidized, Section 8.  Mr. Gougler 

explained the owner of the property has very strict limits based on what can be spent on dirt and the facilities 

themselves; the amount of return is also regulated.  On the renter’s side, the ranges of those who can live in that 

unit vary as to their income. 

 

Commissioner Bliss stated he did not find any indication of a maximum of 60 units in the plan.  The appellant 

indicated he saw 60 maximum.  Mr. Gougler stated he was aware at the time the PUD was done eight years ago 

that a number was needed to show the City a minimum number of apartments would be developed.  They had to 

show the City a minimum of 60 apartments because they had just modified the specific plan with respect to the 

high-density housing and that is what enabled the town homes to be built and the smaller lot homes on the south 

side of Hayes Street.  The original plan was to have apartments in the acreage just south of Hayes and there 

would have been no separation of the apartments from the single family housing.  Chair Barnes stated the 

maximum number of units on that space per City Code is 88 units. 

 

Commissioner Art Smith asked would it be possible to have all off-street parking with the 84 units.  Mr. 

Gougler replied he does not believe it is.  There would be no interior landscaping if he could find the additional 

space for parking.  

 

Commissioner Wall asked if there is any way to mitigate the 18 parking spaces on the street. Mr. Gougler 

replied there are some alternative parking opportunities for tenants he believes tenants will take.  There are 

people who park in the Fred Meyer lot and at the strip mall.  It is not inconceivable that tenants will do the same 

from these apartments. 

 

Todd Waters stated he never mentioned greed as a concern at all.  The homeowners of the Springbrook 

community appreciate the design.  He referred to page 270 of the meeting packet, Phase 5, which states the final 

phase will include up to 60 multi-family units in apartment-style buildings.  The site plan will include off-street 

parking. A detailed design review will be required prior to construction of this phase.   That wording is also 

contained in Exhibit A.  He understands the financial issue for the developer.   

 

Timi Parker, who opposes the project, questioned the design of the apartments regarding the proposed 

appearance.  The apartments have a modern design with sloping flat roofs, which looks nothing like the homes 

in the Oaks which are English cottage style and Craftsman style homes.  It is not consistent.  She walks through 

the townhomes and it is the most congested area regarding parking in Newberg.  She wonders if the City could 

put up short poles to block the driveway that can be removed for emergency purposes. 

 

Marsha Anderson is speaking for herself and her husband who are both opposed to the project.  They live on the 

corner where the most traffic accumulates in the project area.  The fear of increased traffic is a concern.  She 

personally does not have a problem with Section 8 housing and stated the tone in which the developer brought 

up the Section 8 housing was inappropriate as it sounded ugly and she takes objection to that statement. 

 

Chair Barnes closed public testimony at 8:51 PM. 

 

Final Comments from Staff: 

Jessica Nunley pointed out in the Development Code the requirement for dwelling units per code is 126 spaces.  

All of those but one would be accommodated on site.  The Code also requires 17 visitor’s spaces; 18 on-street 

would virtually all be for visitors.  The parking on Hayes Street was planned to be wide enough to accommodate 

a couple configurations depending on what was needed for development in the area.  Hayes Street is wide 

enough to allow for parking and bike lanes.  Overall, the project as proposed meets the density requirements for 

the zone and as envisioned in the Springbrook Oaks Specific Plan for the area. 

 

 
6 of 251



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (June 14 2012) Page 6 
 

Barton Brierley referred to the zoning map and addressed the previous decision in regard to the original plan.  

This particular property was in the Springbrook Oaks Specific Plan.  It is important to look at the zoning of the 

area south of Hayes Street, which is an R-3, multi-family zone. Single family homes are not permitted in the R-3 

zone unless you do a planned unit development.   As part of that application, there was a concern there would 

not be apartments in the area and the vision of the plan and the multi-family units proposed for this area would 

never materialize.  The applicant had stated up to 60 units, which the Planning Commission was concerned with 

since they did not want to see less than 60 units built.  Thus, a condition was placed on the project, (page 317 of 

the meeting handout), that development of the Phase 5 property must include 60 multi-family dwelling units.  

On page 318 at the top, it shows the density allowed for this plan would be 88 units on the property.  

 

Ms. Nunley stated after public testimony, staff’s recommendation is that the Planning Commission moves to 

revise the findings shown in Exhibit A to remove findings for the Code Adjustment (151.210.020 (C)), to 

amend the conditions of approval to require the applicant to submit a revised site plan showing 125 off-street 

parking spaces, and that the Planning Commission adopt Order 2012-03 approving the requested project with 

revised findings in Exhibit A and conditions of approval in Exhibit B.  

 

MOTION #2:   Art Smith/Cathy Stuhr moved to revise the findings shown in Exhibit A to remove findings 

for the Code Adjustment (151.210.020 (C)), and to amend the conditions of approval to require the applicant to 

submit a revised site plan showing 125 off-street parking spaces, and to adopt Order 2012-03 approving the 

requested project, with the revised findings in Exhibit A and the revised conditions of approval in Exhibit B.   

(6Yes/ 0 No/ 1 Absent [Edwards])  Motion carried. 

   

MOTION #3:  Philip Smith/Lon Wall to amend the motion to state the Planning Commission finds the 

proposed development will increase traffic on the streets around Fred Meyer; therefore, condition the approval 

with the applicant providing a speed bump at the entrance to Fred Meyer on Little Oak Street unless the Fire 

Marshal or Police Chief objects, and the north side of Hayes Street shall be striped along the Oak Grove 

Apartment’s frontage to provide for an eight-foot parking lane and six-foot bike lane with the approval of the 

City Engineer.  (6Yes/ 0 No/ 1 Absent [Edwards])  Motion carried. 

 

VI. ITEMS FROM STAFF: 

 

Update on Council items 

 

The City Council is still working on the South Industrial Urban Growth Boundary and should make a decision at 

the June 18, 2012, meeting.  At their July 2, 2012, meeting they are scheduled to hear a batch annexation.  

 

The next Planning Commission Meeting is scheduled for Thursday, July 12, 2012.   

 

An additional Planning Commission Meeting will be held on Thursday, July 19, 2012, regarding updates to the 

Transportation System Plan.  Commissioner Art Smith will not be in attendance. 

 

VII. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS:   

 

Commissioner Bliss stated in reiterating his comments from last month’s Planning Commission meeting, he 

would like the City departments to include comments, such as from the Engineering Department, to help the 

Planning Commission in decision making.  He believes a summary would be helpful in an application such as 

was heard tonight.  Mr. Brierley stated staff does discuss details in great length with Engineering and does 

include their comments in the staff report.  The applicant met with the Engineering and Planning Departments 

before submitting the application and all comments were incorporated into the report.   This application was 

required to have a pre-application meeting.  

 
7 of 251



City of Newberg:  Newberg Planning Commission Minutes (June 14 2012) Page 7 
 

 

The Commission discussed the procedure regarding testifying regarding an appeal.  Mr. Brierley stated there is 

no definitive correct procedure; the applicant was allowed to go first because they still have the burden of 

showing that their application meets the criteria. The hearing was a new hearing where any issue could be 

raised. 

 

VIII. ADJOURN: 

 

Chair Barnes adjourned the meeting at 9:45 p.m. 

 

Approved by the Planning Commission on this 12
th

 day of July, 2012. 

 

AYES: NO: ABSENT: ABSTAIN: 

 

________________________________ _____________________________________ 

Planning Recording Secretary Planning Commission Chair 

 
8 of 251



Exhibit “2” 
To Planning Commission Rules 

 

 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Rules & Guidelines                                   Page 18 

OUTLINE FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 
Newberg Planning Commission 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING, ANNOUNCE THE PURPOSE, DISCUSS TESTIMONY 
PROCEDURE, AND TIME ALLOTMENTS 

 
2.    CALL FOR ABSTENTIONS, BIAS, EX PARTE CONTACT, AND OBJECTIONS TO 

JURISDICTION  
 
3. LEGAL ANNOUNCEMENT 
 READ “QUASI-JUDICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS” SHEET 
 
4. STAFF REPORT 
 COMMISSION MAY ASK BRIEF QUESTIONS FOR CLARIFICATION 

   
5. PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 5 MINUTE TIME LIMIT PER SPEAKER (15 MINUTE LIMIT FOR APPLICANT AND 
PRINCIPAL OPPONENT).  SPEAKER GOES TO WITNESS TABLE, STATES NAME & 
PRESENTS TESTIMONY.  COMMISSION MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF SPEAKERS. 
 A. APPLICANT(S) 
 B. OTHER PROPONENTS                 
 C. OPPONENTS AND UNDECIDED 
 D. STAFF READS WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE (TIME LIMIT APPLIES)  
 E. APPLICANT REBUTTAL 
 
6 CLOSE OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF HEARING 
 
7.  FINAL COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND RECOMMENDATION  
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION DELIBERATION INCLUDING DISCUSSION OF CRITERIA 

WITH FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
9. ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMMISSION 
 A. ORDER OR RESOLUTION – Usually requires passage of order if the 

commission is the final decision maker, or a resolution if the commission is only 
advisory to the council. 

 B. VOTE – Vote is done by roll call. 
C. COMBINATION – Can be combined with other commission action; separate vote 

on each action is required. 

 
9 of 251



 

QUASI-JUDICIAL 

 PUBLIC HEARING PROCESS 

 TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE REQUIREMENTS 

  
 

ORS 197.763 requires certain statements to be made at the commencement of a public hearing. 

 

• The applicable City and State zoning criteria must be listed.  This means that we must advise you of 

the standards that must be satisfied by the applicant prior to our approval of an application.  The 

Planning Staff will list the applicable criteria during his or her presentation of the staff report. 

 

• Persons wishing to participate in this hearing must direct their testimony or the evidence toward the 

criteria stated by the Planner or other specific City or State criteria which you believe apply.  You 

must tell us why the testimony or evidence relates to the criteria. 

 

• Any issue which might be raised in an appeal of this case to the Land Use Board of Appeals 

(LUBA) must be raised in person or by letter at the local level prior to the City approving or 

denying the application.  The law states that the issue must be raised in enough detail to afford the 

decision-maker and the parties an opportunity to respond.  This part of the law is also known as the 

"raise it or waive it" requirement.  If you do not bring it up now, you can't bring it up at LUBA. 

 

• Failure of the applicant to raise constitutional or other issues relating to proposed conditions of 

approval in enough detail to allow the local government or its designee to respond to the issue 

precludes an action for damages in Circuit Court. 

 

•  Prior to the conclusion of the initial evidentiary hearing on an application, any participant may 

request an opportunity to present additional evidence or testimony regarding the application.  The 

Planning Commission will grant such a request through a continuance or extension of the record. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
10 of 251



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

  Planning and Building Department 
   P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 

   503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

CHEHALEM CULTURAL CENTER: CONCEPT MASTER SITE 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN DESIGN REVIEW/HISTORIC REVIEW, PARKING 

VARIANCE, BALLROOM REMODEL DESIGN REVIEW/HISTORIC REVIEW  
  

HEARING DATE: July 12, 2012 
 

FILE NO:  HISD-12-002/DR2-12-010/VAR-12-001 
 

REQUEST: Design review/historic review for a Concept Master Site Development Plan 

for the full build-out of the site; Variance to reduce off-street parking for the 

full build-out to 53 spaces; Design review/historic review for remodeling the 

gymnasium into a ballroom, and construction of a new northern entrance to 

the ballroom. 
 

LOCATION: 415 E. Sheridan Street 
 

TAX LOT: 3218DD-15700 
 

APPLICANT/  

OWNER: Chehalem Park and Recreation District 
 

ZONE: I (Institutional), with Civic Corridor overlay & Historic Landmark overlay 
 

PLAN DISTRICT: PQ (Public/quasi-public) 
  

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

Order 2012-04 with 

 Exhibit “A”:  Findings 

 Exhibit “B”:  Conditions 

1. Aerial Photo 

2. Site Plan 

3. Application 

4. Public Comments/ 

Correspondence Received (none 

as of the writing of this report) 

 

 

 
11 of 251

http://www.newbergoregon.gov/


 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

 

A. DESCRIPTION OF APPLICATION:   The applicant, Chehalem Park and Recreation 

District (CPRD), has requested: 1) A design review/historic review for a Concept Master Site 

Development Plan for the eventual full build-out of the Chehalem Cultural Center site; 2) A 

variance to reduce off-street parking for the full build-out to 53 spaces; and 3) a design 

review/historic review for remodeling the gymnasium into a ballroom, and construction of a 

new northern entrance to the ballroom. 

Previous historic review/design review approvals: The Planning Commission has approved 

several projects for the Cultural Center in recent years. The Commission approved Phase I of 

the Cultural Center in 2008, which approved the remodel of most of the ground floor, a 

remodeled southern entrance, a northern kiln room, trash enclosure, and a small amount of 

parking. A later modification approved a larger gravel parking lot while PCC was using the 

building. The Commission approved a 53-space parking lot in 2011 and allowed the 

temporary gravel parking lot to remain. The parking lot was built with pervious pavers.  

Current proposal: The only new physical improvement that the applicant is currently 

requesting approval for is to remodel the gymnasium into a ballroom, and build a new lobby 

entrance on the northern side of the building for the ballroom. This is a historic building and 

site, so the ballroom project requires a historic review and a design review. 

The applicant also has a concept plan that shows how they would like to eventually build out 

the site. Newberg's Development Code has an option for institutions that would like to create a 

master plan for a campus or large site; they can apply for approval of a Concept Master Site 

Development Plan, and address issues like traffic impact, parking, and historic compatibility 

for the entire site. If the Concept Master Site Development Plan is approved then later phases 

of the Chehalem Cultural Center would only require a Type II Design Review/Type I Historic 

Review, which would focus on whether the proposed improvement matched the approved 

Concept Master Site Development Plan. 

The Concept Master Site Development Plan shows 53 off-street parking spaces at full build-

out of the site. The Development Code would require substantially more parking spaces, so 

the applicant has also applied for a variance to reduce the amount of off-street parking at full 

build-out to 53 spaces. The reduction request is based on the availability of parking in the 

nearby public parking lot and on the adjacent streets, and on a parking management plan for 

large events. 

Newberg Cultural District master plan: The Chehalem Cultural Center (CCC), the City of 

Newberg and CPRD have worked together over the last few years to develop a vision plan for 

the "Cultural District" area surrounding the Newberg Public Library and the CCC. The plan 

was based on work by the Project for Public Spaces group, and refined over the course of 

several meetings. On April 2, 2012 the Newberg City Council passed Resolution 2012-2998, 

which:  

1) Declared the area bounded by Hancock, Blaine, Sherman and School Streets to be 

designated the "Cultural District". The designation was in name only, and did not carry 

with it any land use changes, restrictions or conditions;   

2)  Accepted the Cultural District master plan dated 3/16/12 as the guidance document for 

future improvements within the Cultural District. It is important to note that the plan 

 
12 of 251



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

was accepted as a guidance document, not approved as a design review. This was not a 

land use decision;  

3) Directed the city manager to develop an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with 

CPRD to address designation, management, and maintenance of the open space; 

outdoor event coordination, and specifically a parking management program to address 

parking needs for events within the district and convene a neighborhood advisory 

group. Said agreement shall be presented to and approved by city council prior to 

development of site areas E1, E2, E3, and C3 (the areas on the west and south sides of 

the CCC).  

4) The Concept Master Site Development plan design review application is based on the 

Cultural District vision plan. If approved, this will give formal land use approval to the 

portion of the vision plan that surrounds the CCC.  

 

B. SITE INFORMATION: 

1. Location:  415 E. Sheridan Street (old Central School building) 

2. Size: 40,500 square foot building on a 2.5 acre lot 

3. Topography: Fairly flat, with a slight slope to the south. The yards slope away from the 

building. 

4. Current Land Uses: Chehalem Cultural Center (Phase One). Rotary Centennial Park is 

located on the southeast corner of the site. 

5. Natural Features: Primarily lawns, with some street trees on Sherman Street. 

6. Adjacent Land Uses: 

a. North: Primarily single family residential, with a bed & breakfast inn. 

b. East: Primarily single family residential 

c. South: Newberg public library, Masonic building, some single family 

residential. 

d. West: Primarily single family residential. 

7. Access and Transportation: The parking lot has driveway accesses on Sherman Street 

and on Blaine Street. Sidewalk ADA ramps have been constructed at all four corners 

of the site. 

8. Utilities: The site has existing sanitary sewer and water connections.  

a. There are downstream stormwater issues, so any new impervious surfaces on 

the site will have to address stormwater detention and quality issues. The new 

parking lot was constructed with pervious pavers and a deep gravel base, which 

combine to provide detention for parking lot stormwater. 

 
13 of 251



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

b. There are overhead utility lines on the Sherman Street and School Street 

frontages. The parking lot design review approval required the adjacent utility 

line on Sherman Street to be placed underground; this work is scheduled to be 

done when Sheridan Street is improved in 2013.  

C. PROCESS:  The historic review request is a Type III application and follows the procedures 

in Newberg Development Code 15.100.050. The design review and variance applications are 

Type II applications, but are considered a joint application with the historic review and are 

therefore all reviewed through a Type III process.  The Planning Commission will hold a 

quasi-judicial hearing on the application.  The Commission is to make a decision on the 

application based on the criteria listed in the attached findings.  The Planning Commission’s 

decision is final unless appealed.  Important dates related to this application are as follows: 

1. 6/25/12: The planning director deemed the application complete. 

2. 6/21/12: The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 500 

feet of the site. 

3. 6/25/12: The applicant posted notice on the site. 

4. 6/27/12: The Newberg Graphic published notice of the Planning 

Commission hearing. 

5. 7/12/12: The Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial hearing to 

consider the application. 

D. AGENCY COMMENTS:  The application was routed to several city departments, public 

agencies, and franchise utilities for review and comment: City Manager, Planning & Building 

Director, Building Official, City Engineer, Fire Marshal, Police, Finance, Public Works 

Maintenance Supervisor, Legal, State Historic Preservation Office, Southern Pacific Railroad, 

NW Natural Gas, PGE, Comcast, Frontier/Verizon, Waste Management, and Newberg School 

District.  Comments and recommendations from city departments have been incorporated into 

the findings and conditions in this report.  As of the writing of this report, the city received the 

following agency comments:   

1. PGE:  Reviewed; no conflict 

2. Engineering: Had several comments related to sidewalk improvements, 

undergrounding, and future stormwater requirements. 

Transportation: 

The parking variance application indicates the use of public on-street parking in the 

vicinity of the Cultural Center as mitigation. The pedestrian accessibility to the on-

street parking areas will require improvements at the following street intersections: 

1. School and Sheridan: SE curb return, SW curb return, and the NW curb return 

2. Blaine and Sheridan: NE curb return, SE curb return, and the SW curb return. 

3. Blaine and Sherman: SW curb return, NW curb return, and the NE curb return. 

4. Howard and Sherman: NE curb return, and the NW curb return. 

5. School and Sherman: NE curb return, and the SE curb return. 

The City of Newberg will construct the pedestrian accessibility improvements at 

intersections #1 and #2 above as a part of the Sheridan Street Improvement project, 

 
14 of 251



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

currently planned for the summer of 2013.  The applicant will be required to complete 

the pedestrian accessibility enhancements at intersections #3, #4, and #5 above, to 

meet current ADA standards.  

Utilities: 

The applicant is required to address the utility undergrounding requirements and 

criteria in the Development Code. 

Storm Drainage: 

The 2001 Drainage Master Plan identifies a downstream deficiency in the conveyance 

system in Hancock Street between School Street and Meridian Street; Capital 

Improvement Project #H7.  The downstream deficiency shall either be repaired per the 

Master Plan, or stormwater detention facilities shall be constructed to store the runoff 

from any newly created impervious surface.  The detention system shall store the 

runoff volume between the pre-developed and post developed site flows for the 2, 5, 10, 

and 25 year storm events.(Note: this applies to future phases that create new 

impervious surfaces).   

 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  As of the writing of this report, the city has not received any 

written public comments.  If the city receives written comments by the comment deadline, 

planning staff will forward them to the commissioners. 

 

F. ANALYSIS:  

1. Parking: The site has a new parking lot with 53 spaces. The Development Code 

requires substantially more off-street parking at full build out of the CCC. The 

applicant has applied for a variance to reduce the amount of required off-street parking 

to 53 spaces, based on available adjacent on-street parking, a nearby public parking lot, 

and a parking management plan for large events. The applicant performed a parking 

survey, which collected good data about the use of on-street parking in the area and 

found that most of it is commonly available. It appears that the 53 space parking lot 

will be adequate for the typical usage of the CCC, but it is more difficult to determine 

if the existing parking and the parking management plan will be adequate during large 

events. 

2. Historic review: The ballroom remodel will replace some existing windows, add a 

large glass overhead door on the west side of the building, and add a lobby/ballroom 

entrance on the north side of the building. The new windows and doors are similar in 

style and materials to the existing ones on the building. The new lobby addition also 

has doors and windows similar to the existing ones, but uses stained cedar siding on 

the exterior. The existing building has brick walls. Staff believes that the applicant has 

made a good case that the small size, flat roof, and storefront windows make the 

addition historically compatible, while the cedar siding differentiates it from the 

existing building. The review standards for historic buildings do call for new additions 

to be visibly differentiated, but it could be argued that this standard could still be met 

while using brick siding on the lobby addition. 

3. Civic Corridor design standards: These standards call for the building façade to have a 

base, field, and crown design. The existing building does not meet these standards, 

however, so this creates a conflict; the historic standards want new additions to protect 

the historic character of the building, while the Civic Corridor standards prescribe a 

design that some historic buildings in Newberg have. The applicant has emphasized 

 
15 of 251



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

maintaining the historic character of the existing building. Staff believes the applicant 

has taken the best approach, but an argument could be made that the design should be 

modified to meet the base/field/crown requirements of the Civic Corridor. 

4. Sheridan Street improvements: The City has budgeted funds to improve the section of 

Sheridan Street between Blaine Street and School Street. The City Engineering 

division will prepare design drawings this year, and contract for construction in 2013. 

As part of that project they expect to make necessary ADA sidewalk improvements 

along Sheridan, and to underground the overhead utility lines along Sheridan. 

5. Overhead lines along School Street: The Development Code requires overhead lines to 

be undergrounded when a site undergoes design review, but allows an exception to this 

based on a few criteria. If undergrounding the lines will be extraordinarily expensive 

then an exception can be granted. Staff has looked at the overhead lines on School 

Street and concluded they would be extraordinarily expensive to underground, due to 

the number of lines on the street, the number of cross lines they tie into, and the need 

to maintain utility poles on the corners to anchor the adjacent system of overhead lines. 

Staff concluded that the applicant should not have to underground the School Street 

overhead lines.  

 

G. PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The preliminary staff recommendation 

is made in the absence of public hearing testimony, and may be modified subsequent to the 

close of the public hearing.  At this writing, staff recommends the following motion: 

 

 Move to adopt Planning Commission Order 2012-04, which approves the requested historic 

review/design review, and partially approves the parking variance, with the attached 

conditions. 

 
16 of 251



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

    PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER 2012-04 
 

 

 AN ORDER APPROVING HISTORIC REVIEW/DESIGN REVIEW HISD-12-

002/DR2-12-010 FOR A DESIGN REVIEW/HISTORIC REVIEW FOR A CONCEPT 

MASTER SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE FULL BUILD-OUT OF THE 

CHEHALEM CULTURAL CENTER SITE;  A DESIGN REVIEW/HISTORIC REVIEW 

FOR REMODELING THE GYMNASIUM INTO A BALLROOM, AND CONSTRUCTION 

OF A NEW NORTHERN LOBBY ENTRANCE TO THE BALLROOM; AND PARTIALLY 

APPROVING VAR-12-001, A VARIANCE REQUEST TO REDUCE THE AMOUNT OF 

REQUIRED OFF-STREET PARKING, 415 E. SHERIDAN STREET,  YAMHILL 

COUNTY TAX LOT 3218DD-15700  

 

RECITALS 
 

1. On June 12, 2012 Chehalem Park and Recreation District submitted an application for a historic 

review/design review for a Concept Master Site Development Plan for the Chehalem Cultural Center 

site, for the remodel of the gymnasium into a ballroom, and for a variance to reduce the amount of 

required off-street parking at the Chehalem Cultural Center, 415 E. Sheridan Street, Yamhill County 

Tax Lot 3218DD-15700. 

 

2. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on July 12, 2012 to consider the 

application.  The Commission considered testimony, and deliberated. 

 

3. The Newberg Planning Commission finds that the historic review/design review applications meet the 

applicable criteria with conditions, and that the variance application partially meets the criteria with 

conditions, as shown in the findings shown in Exhibit “A”. 

 

The Newberg Planning Commission orders as follows: 

 

1. Historic Review/Design Review application HISD-12-002/DR2-12-010 is hereby approved, and the 

Variance application VAR-12-001 partially approved, subject to the conditions contained in Exhibit 

“B”.  Exhibit "B" is hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated. 
 

2. The findings shown in Exhibit “A” are hereby adopted.  Exhibit "A" is hereby adopted and by this 

reference incorporated. 
 

3. This order shall be effective July 27, 2012 unless appealed prior to that date. 
 

4. This order shall expire one year after the effective date above if the applicant does not obtain a building 

permit pursuant to this application by that time, unless an extension is granted per Newberg 

Development Code 15.225.100. 
 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 12th day of July, 2012. 

        ATTEST: 

 

Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 
 

List of Exhibits: 

 Exhibit “A”: Findings  

 Exhibit “B”: Conditions  

 
17 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

Exhibit “A” to Planning Commission Order 2012-04 

Findings –File HISD-12-002/DR2-12-010/VAR-12-001 

Chehalem Cultural Center: Concept Master Site Development Plan, Parking 

Variance, Ballroom Remodel  

CONCEPT MASTER SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN:  

DESIGN REVIEW/HISTORIC REVIEW 

 
A. Concept Master Site Development Plan - Design Review Criteria That Apply - Newberg 

 Development  Code 

 

 15.220.020 Site design review applicability. 

D (2). Institutions and other large developments that anticipate significant development 

over time, but cannot provide detailed information about future projects or phases of 

development in advance, can develop a concept master site development plan which 

addresses generic site development and design elements including but not limited to 

general architectural standards and materials, landscaping standards and materials, on-

site vehicular and pedestrian circulation, institutional sign program, and baseline traffic 

and parking studies and improvement programs. The applicant will be required to undergo 

Type II site design review, per the requirements of NMC 15.220.030(B), for each project or 

phase of development at the time of construction, including demonstration of substantial 

compliance with the generic development and design elements contained within the 

approved concept master site development plan. The more detailed and comprehensive the 

generic elements in the concept master site development plan are, the more reduced is the 

scope of discretionary review at the time of actual construction of a project or phase of 

development. For purposes of this subsection, “substantial compliance” will be defined as 

noted in subsection (D)(1)(a) of this section. 

4. The approval(s) granted in this section shall be in effect as follows: 

b. Institutions submitting a concept master site development plan shall be held to the same 

requirement provided in subsection (D)(2)(a) of this section, unless the plan specifically 

includes an expiration date. In no case shall a concept master site development plan cover 

a period exceeding 10 years. 

 

Finding: The applicant has submitted a Concept Master Site Development Plan for the build-out of 

the entire Chehalem Cultural Center (CCC) site. The master plan will be reviewed below according 

to the design review and historic review criteria. If the master plan is approved then future phases of 

the CCC will be able to be reviewed through a Type II design review/Type I historic review process; 

if the applicant is able to demonstrate in the Type II design review that future phases of the project 

are in substantial compliance with the approved Concept Master Site Development Plan then they 

will not have to apply for a Type III Historic Review for each additional phase. The applicant has 

requested that the master plan approval cover a period of ten years. This is the maximum period 

allowed by the Development Code, but is appropriate for a project of this size due to the lengthy 

fundraising needed for each phase of improvements.   

 
18 of 251

http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=166
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=80
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=257
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15220.html#15.220.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=80
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=80
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=166
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=80
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=80


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

 15.220.050(B) Design Review criteria: 

1. Design compatibility. The proposed design review request incorporates an 

architectural design which is compatible with and/or superior to existing or 

proposed uses and structures in the surrounding area.  This shall include, but not 

be limited to, building architecture, materials, colors, roof design, landscape design, 

and signage. 

Finding: The Concept Master Site Development Plan (CMSDP) shows that over half of the site has 

already been developed according to the plan, and that few additional changes are planned for the 

building itself. In Phase 1 most of the ground floor and two classrooms on the second floor were 

remodeled and put to use. In Phase 2 the ground-floor ballroom will be remodeled and an entrance 

lobby will be built. Future phases of building improvements will include primarily internal 

improvements such as remodeling the theater and the remaining second floor classrooms. The 

eastern portion of the grounds has been developed (Rotary Centennial Park, and the lawn used for 

Tunes on Tuesday), and the northern portion of the grounds has been developed with a parking lot. 

The master plan shows that the western portion of the grounds is expected to be developed with 

gardens and courtyards, while the southern portion of the grounds will be developed into a forecourt 

for the CCC.  

The site has older residential houses on the west, north and east sides. South of the site is the 

Masonic Temple building, Newberg Public Library, and a historic residential house. The surrounding 

structures and the Central School building formed a compatible neighborhood. 

The CMSDP building plan and site plan are compatible with the residential structures in the 

immediate vicinity because they keep the basic form of the old Central School intact while adding 

attractive gardens, courtyards, parking, and active spaces around the building. The Central School 

site was inactive for several years, and was a quiet site. As the master plan is developed in phases 

and the CCC becomes more active the site will have more noise and activity. The additional 

landscaping around the building and parking lot will help to buffer the surrounding area as the old 

Central School resumes active use as the Chehalem Cultural center. Any lighting that is added to the 

site will be required to meet the Development Code light-trespass limits, which will control the 

impacts on adjacent properties and ensure compatibility. 

2. Parking and On-Site Circulation. Parking areas shall meet the requirements of 

NMC 15.440.010. Parking studies may be required to determine if adequate 

parking and circulation are provided for uses not specifically identified in NMC 

15.440.010. Provisions shall be made to provide efficient and adequate on-site 

circulation without using the public streets as part of the parking lot circulation 

pattern. Parking areas shall be designed so that vehicles can efficiently enter and 

exit the public streets with a minimum impact on the functioning of the public 

street. 

Finding: The applicant built a 53 space parking lot in 2011. The Development Code requires the full 

build-out of the CMSDP to have the following amount of parking: 

 
19 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

Area of CCC 

Parking space 

standard Base requirement Subtotal per phase 

Phase 1: 

      School, commercial 1 per 3 seats 20 spaces  

Art gallery 1 per 250 sf 8 spaces  

Office 1 per 400 sf 2 spaces  

Public assembly rooms 1 per 4 seats 7 spaces Phase 1: 37 spaces 

Phase 2: 

Assembly hall - ballroom 1 per 4 seats 80 spaces 

Phase 2: 80 new spaces, 

117 total spaces 

Future phases: 

Assembly hall - theater 1 per 4 seats 55 spaces  

Public assembly rooms 1 per 4 seats 25 spaces  

Office 1 per 400 sf 5 spaces  

School, commercial 1 per 3 seats 12 spaces 

Future phases: 97 new 

spaces, 214 total spaces 

 
 214 spaces  

 

The Development Code allows the base requirement to be reduced in two different ways: 

B. Joint Uses of Parking Facilities. The director may, upon application, authorize the joint use of 

parking facilities required by said uses and any other parking facility; provided, that: 

1. The applicant shows that there is no substantial conflict in the principal operating hours of the 

building or use for which the joint use of parking facilities is proposed. 

C. Commercial establishments within 200 feet of a commercial public parking lot may reduce the 

required number of parking spaces by 50 percent. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.614.] 

 

Commercial establishments within 200 feet of a public parking lot can reduce the number of required 

spaces by 50%. The site is within 200 feet of the public parking lot on Hancock Street, and in the 

2008 design review approval the Planning Commission did use this standard when calculating the 

amount of required parking. The applicant applied this standard, which reduced the total amount of 

required parking in Phase 1 to 19 spaces, in Phase 2 to 59 spaces, and in full build-out to 107 spaces. 

One problem with applying this standard is that the CCC is not a typical commercial establishment; 

it is a non-profit education/arts center, an art gallery, a commercial school, and will rent out the 

ballroom and theater for events. It is also in an Institutional zone, and is adjacent to residential 

neighborhoods. The other problem is a question of scale. The nearby public parking lot has 28 

spaces. If the 50% reduction is applied at full build out then the 28 space parking lot is being used to 

reduce the amount of required parking at the CCC by 107 spaces. The 50% parking reduction may be 

reasonable for Phase 2, but seems unrealistic at Phase 3. Another factor, however, is the number of 

adjacent on-street parking spaces. The code does not provide a credit for adjacent on-street parking 

for commercial/institutional sites, but the applicant's parking survey showed that most of the 49 

adjacent on-street parking spaces were readily available. 

 

 
20 of 251

http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/html/ords/Ord2451.pdf


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

If we accept that the 50% reduction fully applies then that still leaves the CCC site short 54 parking 

spaces. The applicant based their calculation on the 50% reduction and has applied for a variance to 

reduce the amount of require parking to 53 spaces total.  

 

The Development Code also allows the base parking requirement to be reduced if the operating hours 

of the joint uses do not substantially overlap.  Based on the applicant's comments, the ballroom will 

be used mostly evenings and weekends, when the rest of the center is not at peak use. If we assume 

that during weekdays the center is at full capacity and the ballroom is at ½ capacity, and that on 

weekends the ball room is at full capacity and the rest of the center is at ½ capacity, then a more 

realistic parking calculation for Phase II is: 

 

 Area 

Base 

Required 

Parking 

Weekday 

Req. Pkg. - 

joint uses 

Evening/ 

Weekend 

Req. Pkg. - 

joint uses 

Rest of 

Center 
37 37 19 

Ballroom 80 40 80 

Total 117 77 99 

 

For Phase 3, if you assume that the ballroom and theater events do not occur simultaneously, and that 

½ of the rest of the center is open during those events, you get the following calculation: 
 

Area 

Base 

Required 

Parking 

Weekday Req. 

Pkg. - 

Joint uses 

Ballroom Event 

Req. Pkg. - joint 

uses 

Theater Event 

Req. Pkg. - 

joint uses 

Phase I 
37 37 19 19 

Ballroom 80 40 80 0 

Phase III (except 

Theater) 42 42 21 21 

Theater 55 0 0 55 

Total 214 119 120 95 

 

Based on a reduction for joint uses, the real code requirement for Phase 2 would be 99 spaces for 

the peak load, and for Phase 3 it would be 120 spaces for the peak load. The applicant has a 53 

space parking lot, and a temporary gravel parking lot on the west side of the building with 26 spaces. 

If the gravel parking lot is used then two of the paved parking spaces cannot be used, for a net total 

 
21 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

of 77 paved and gravel parking spaces. The gravel parking lot will remain in Phase 2, so the 

applicant needs a variance to reduce the amount of required parking by 22 spaces, from 99 to 77 

spaces. If the variance is approved then Phase 2 will meet the parking standards in the Development 

Code. 

 

If the gravel parking lot is removed in Phase 3 then the applicant needs a variance to reduce the 

parking requirement from 120 spaces to 53 spaces. If this variance is approved then Phase 3 will 

meet the parking standards in the Development Code. 
 

There is a 6-space bicycle parking rack located near the south east entrance, which was added in a 

previous phase and meets the minimum standards of the Development Code. The applicant is 

encouraged to add additional bicycle parking near the new north entrance. 

3. Setbacks and General Requirements. The proposal shall comply with NMC 

15.415.010 through 15.415.060 dealing with height restrictions and public access; 

and NMC 15.405.010 through 15.405.040 and NMC 15.410.010 through 

15.410.070 dealing with setbacks, coverage, vision clearance, and yard 

requirements. 

Finding: The Institutional zone requires a front yard setback of 25 feet for structures and parking. 

The building and parking lot shown on the plan already exist, and no future building or parking 

additions are planned. There are no plans to increase the height of the building, or to make changes 

that would affect vision clearance area. The site has public access on all four sides. As proposed, the 

CMSDP complies with the height restrictions and public access requirements, setback, coverage, 

vision clearance and yard requirements of the Code. 

4. Landscaping Requirements. The proposal shall comply with NMC 15.420.010 

dealing with landscape requirements and landscape screening. 

Finding: The CMSDP shows that over 50% of the site consist of landscaping, plazas, play areas and 

walkways. The building and parking lot have appropriate landscape screening and buffering. The 

plan also shows street trees on all four sides of the site, as required by code. Street trees have been 

installed on Sherman Street adjacent to the parking lot. The street trees on Blaine and Sheridan 

Streets shall be installed after the adjacent site improvements have been completed. The site 

improvements on the eastern part of the CCC have already been completed, however, so the street 

trees along the eastern section of Sherman Street and along School Street should be installed as part 

of Phase II. Following compliance with design review conditions, the landscape plan complies with 

NMC 15.420.010.  All areas subject to the final design review plan and not otherwise improved are 

landscaped.   

5. Signs. Signs shall comply with NMC 15.435.010 et seq. dealing with signs. 

Finding: The CMSDP does not explicitly cover signage. The applicant will submit specific sign 

plans with each phase, and will have to comply with the Civic Corridor sign code. The applicant has 

submitted plans for a new wall sign as part of the ballroom, which will be reviewed in the ballroom 

 
22 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

design review.  

6. Manufactured Home, Mobile Home and RV Parks. Manufactured home, mobile 

home, and recreational vehicle parks shall also comply with the standards listed in 

NMC 15.445.050 et seq. in addition to the other criteria listed in this section. 

Finding: Not applicable. The development proposal is not a manufactured home, mobile home, or 

RV park. 

7. Zoning District Compliance. The proposed use shall be listed as a permitted or 

conditionally permitted use in the zoning district in which it is located as found in 

NMC 15.304.010 through 15.328.040. Through this site review process, the director 

may make a determination that a use is determined to be similar to those listed in 

the applicable zoning district, if it is not already specifically listed. In this case, the 

director shall make a finding that the use shall not have any different or more 

detrimental effects upon the adjoining neighborhood area than those specifically 

listed. 

Finding: The site is zoned Institutional. The CCC is a community center, which is an outright 

permitted use in this zone. 

8. Subdistrict Compliance. Properties located within subdistricts shall comply with 

the provisions of those subdistricts located in NMC 15.340.010 through 15.348.060. 

The site is within the Civic Corridor subdistrict. The following development standards apply: 

15.350.060 Development standards. 

In addition to the standards of NMC 15.220.080, the following development standards shall apply to 

new development or redevelopment within the civic corridor overlay subdistrict. 

A. Elements of the Street-Facing Facade. 

1. Base, Field, and Crown. For new or redeveloped buildings, all street-facing facades shall be 

clearly divided into three separate elements: base, field and crown. Separations shall be made by 

changes in material or by shifts in the depth of the facade. Merely painting the facade different 

colors without some other physical delineation is not sufficient. For new or redeveloped buildings, 

elements of the street-facing facade shall comply with the standards below: 

a. Base. The base of the facade shall be a maximum of four feet for single-story buildings, a 

maximum of one story for two- to four-story buildings, and a maximum of two stories for buildings 

greater than four stories. Bases shall be expressed in heavier-appearing materials (e.g., stone or 

brick) and have a more horizontal emphasis. 

b. Field. The field of a facade is all the floors between the base and the crown. The field element 

shall be expressed as a series of repetitive vertical elements that include windows, pilasters and trim. 

c. Crown. The crown can be expressed as part of the top floor of the building or as a decorative 

cornice. Crowns shall be more elaborate than the field element of the facade and shall incorporate 

 
23 of 251

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15220.html#15.220.080


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

detailed elements that articulate the top of the building.  

Finding: The Civic Corridor standards apply to buildings and signs, and so do not apply directly to a 

site plan review. The applicant does not plan extensive changes to the exterior of the building after 

the ballroom/lobby phase. The applicant has supplied elevation drawings for the proposed 

ballroom/lobby building changes, which will be reviewed in the ballroom/lobby design review. It 

should be noted that the existing CCC building has a fairly modern style and does not meet the 

base/field/crown standards, so any additions will have to balance the Civic Corridor standards and 

historic compatibility standards. If future phase make only minor building changes, such as replacing 

existing windows, then they may not have to address the Civic Corridor design standards. If future 

phases make more substantial changes to the building then they will need to address the Civic 

Corridor standards during that phase.  

B. Street-Facing Facade Articulation. 

1. Detail at First Floor. Buildings that have highly detailed ground floors contribute significantly to 

the pedestrian experience. To accomplish this desirable characteristic, ground-floor elements like 

window trim, pilaster ornamentation, the texture of the base material, and even whimsical 

sculptural pieces embedded in the facade like busts or reliefs are highly encouraged. Especially 

desirable are details that relate to the history or culture of the surrounding region. 

2. Cornice Treatment. Flat-roof buildings shall have cornices. Cornices shall have a combined 

width plus depth of at least three feet. An additional one foot shall be added to this required total for 

every story above one. 

C. Street-Facing Windows – Depth of Windows. Windows shall be recessed at least three inches 

from the general plane of the facade. This creates shadow lines and visual interest, giving the 

facade the perception of depth. Depth in the facade promotes the perception of high quality and 

durable construction, and contributes to the district’s historic character. 

D. Street-Facing Facade Materials. 

1. Dominant Material. All facades shall be comprised primarily of brick. The color of the brick 

shall be a reddish-brown of generally the same tonal quality as the existing brick buildings within 

the civic corridor. When used as a veneer material, the brick must be at least two and one-half 

inches thick. Additional materials are allowed as accents. 

2. Allowed Accent Materials. Allowed accent materials include horizontal wood and cementitious 

lap siding, horizontal board and batten siding, shingles, shakes, and copper or brass. Lap siding, 

shingles, and shakes shall leave exposed a maximum of six inches to the weather. In board and 

batten siding, battens shall be spaced at most eight inches on center. In addition, rusticated concrete 

block, or stone masonry is allowed, but when used as a veneer material, it must be at least two and 

one-half inches thick. Cement-based stucco is allowed. 

 
24 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

3. Changes in Material. Brick street-facing facades shall return at least 18 inches around exposed 

side walls. 

 

Finding: The existing windows on the building have adequate depth and the existing facades are 

comprised primarily of brick. Each future phase will need to address these standards in their design 

reviews. 
 

E. Signage Standards. In addition to the C-3 signage requirements of NMC 15.435.010 through 

15.435.120, to encourage the historic character of the civic corridor as described in NMC 

15.350.010, signs within the civic corridor shall include four of the following six elements: 

1. The most prominent element on a sign, such as the business’ name, uses a serif font and does not 

exceed eight inches in height. 

2. The sign includes a frame, background or lettering in natural wood materials. 

3. The sign includes a frame, background or lettering in copper or brass in natural finishes. 

4. The sign incorporates decorative wrought iron. 

5. The lettering is in a raised relief. 

6. The sign is attached to a mounting bracket and allowed to swing freely. [Ord. 2561, 4-1-02. Code 

2001 § 151.526.6.] 

 

Finding: The existing signage on the building meets the Civic Corridor sign standards. Any future 

signs will be reviewed as part of each design review. The ballroom/lobby design review will address 

the proposed sign on the lobby entrance. 

9. Alternative Circulation, Roadway Frontage Improvements and Utility 

Improvements. Where applicable, new developments shall provide for access for 

vehicles and pedestrians to adjacent properties which are currently developed or 

will be developed in the future. This may be accomplished through the provision of 

local public streets or private access and utility easements. At the time of 

development of a parcel, provisions shall be made to develop the adjacent street 

frontage in accordance with city street standards and the standards contained in the 

transportation plan. At the discretion of the city, these improvements may be 

deferred through use of a deferred improvement agreement or other form of 

security. 

Finding: The CMSDP does not propose any significant changes to Blaine Street, Sherman Street, or 

School Street. All will continue to have parallel parking, and all will eventually have street trees as 

the adjacent part of the site is developed. The CMSDP does show improvements on Sheridan Street; 

the western half will be widened to allow additional on-street parking, the central portion will be 

integrated with the building forecourt, and the entire length will be repaved. The city has budgeted 

funds to improve this section of Sheridan Street in 2013, and at that time will underground the 

overhead utility line and make necessary ADA sidewalk and ramp improvements. 

Stormwater drainage: The city's 2001 Drainage Master Plan identifies a downstream deficiency in 

the conveyance system in Hancock Street between School Street and Meridian Street; Capital 

Improvement Project #H7.  The downstream deficiency shall either be repaired per the Drainage 

Master Plan, or stormwater detention facilities shall be constructed to store the runoff from any 

newly created impervious surface.  The detention system shall store the runoff volume between the 

 
25 of 251

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15435.html#15.435.010
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15435.html#15.435.120
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15350.html#15.350.010
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2561.pdf


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

pre-developed and post developed site flows for the 2, 5, 10, and 25 year storm events. Future phases 

of the CMSDP that create new impervious surfaces will be required to address stormwater detention 

issues.  

Undergrounding utility lines: The applicant was conditioned to underground the single overhead 

utility line on Sherman Street, and will complete that in 2013 when the Sheridan Street 

improvements are constructed. There are also overhead lines on School Street, which the code 

requires to be undergrounded unless: the cost will be extraordinarily expensive; or there are physical 

factors that make undergrounding extraordinarily difficult; or existing utility facilities in the area are 

primarily overhead and are unlikely to be changed. There are multiple overhead lines on School 

Street, and the poles are connected into a network of east-west and north-south lines. Two of the 

poles also serve as light poles. If the utility lines were undergrounded on the School Street frontage it 

would likely only eliminate one utility pole, as the others would be required to be retained and 

tethered with cables to support the surrounding network of overhead lines. Several utility lines would 

need to be extended under the street to maintain service to adjacent homes. Staff believes that 

undergrounding the School Street overhead lines will be extraordinarily expensive, and that the 

project therefore meets the criteria for an exception to the undergrounding requirement on School 

Street.  

10. Traffic Study Improvements. If a traffic study is required, improvements 

identified in the traffic study shall be implemented as required by the director. 

Finding:  The applicant had a traffic study completed in 1998 for the build-out of a community 

center at this site. The study examined nearby intersections and found that there were no significant 

issues due to accidents or level of service that needed to be mitigated. The site is in a well connected 

street grid and has access in multiple directions. While the level of background traffic has increased 

over time, we can also anticipate some future reduction in truck traffic and overall background traffic 

levels when the first phase of the Newberg-Dundee bypass is completed in a few years. The first 

phase of the CCC was completed in 2008 and has not created traffic issues near the site. The 

applicant's traffic engineer has estimated that the build-out of the remainder of the site will generate 

approximately 36.4 trips in the p.m. peak hour. This is less than 40 trips in the p.m. peak hour, so a 

new traffic study is not required for the build-out of the CMSDP. 

B. Historic Landmark Review Criteria That Apply - Newberg Development Code 15.344.030. 

The Planning Commission, in considering applications for permit approval for any alteration, 

shall base their decision on substantial compliance with the following criteria and guidelines. 

 
a. The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved.  The removal of 

historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided.  

Specific design elements which must be addressed include: 

 i. Average setback.  When a new structure is being constructed on an infill lot, the 

front yard setback shall be the same as the buildings on either side.  When the front setbacks of the 

adjacent buildings are different, the front setback of the new structure shall be an average of the 

two. 

 ii. Architectural elements.  The design shall incorporate architectural elements of the 

 
26 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

city’s historic styles, including Queen Anne, Colonial Revival, Dutch Colonial Revival, and 

Bungalow styles.  Ideally, the architectural elements should reflect and/or be compatible with the 

style of other nearby historic structures.  Typical design elements which should be considered 

include, but are not limited to, “crippled hip” roofs, Palladian-style windows, roof eave brackets, 

roof dormers, and decorative trim boards. 

 iii. Building orientation.  The main entrance of the new structure shall be oriented to 

the street.  Construction of a porch is encouraged but not required.  Such a porch shall be at least 

six feet in depth.   

 iv. Vehicle parking/storage.  Garages and carports shall be set back from the front 

facade of the primary structure and shall relate to the primary structure in terms of design and 

building materials. 

 v. Fences.  Fences shall be built of materials which are compatible with the design 

and materials used in the primary structure. 

 

Finding:  The exterior changes to the ballroom and lobby will be reviewed in a separate design 

review/historic review. The remainder of the CMSDP does not anticipate any significant changes to 

the exterior of the building. Future phases will likely include some window and door replacement, 

but no building additions or outbuildings. The average setback, building orientation and architectural 

elements will remain the same. The site itself has historically had an open character with large lawns. 

The planned courtyard and gardens on the west side and the planned forecourt on the south side will 

maintain the open character of the site. As proposed, the build-out of the CMSDP will maintain the 

historic character of the site. 

 
b. Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use.  Changes 

that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or 

architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken. 

c. Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired historic significance in 

their own right shall be retained and preserved. 

d. Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship 

that characterize a historic property shall be preserved to the extent possible. 

 

Finding:  The exterior changes to the ballroom and lobby will be reviewed in a separate design 

review/historic review. The remainder of the CMSDP does not plan to significantly change the 

exterior of the building and will not create a false sense of historical development. Future window or 

door replacements will match the existing features and finishes.  

 
e. Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced.  Where the severity of 

deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall reasonably match 

the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where possible, materials.  

Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated by documentary, physical, or pictorial 

evidence. 

f. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause extensive damage to 

historic materials shall not be used.  The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be 

undertaken using the gentlest means possible. 

g. Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and preserved.  

If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be undertaken. 

 

 
27 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

Finding:  The exterior changes to the ballroom and lobby will be reviewed in a separate design 

review/historic review. The remainder of the CMSDP does not anticipate replacing any deteriorated 

historic features, other than windows and doors as needed. No sandblasting is anticipated, and there 

are no known significant archeological resources on the site.   

 
h. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy historic 

character of the property.  The new work shall be differentiated from the old and shall be 

compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect the historic integrity of 

the property and its environment. 

i. New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a 

manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its 

environment would be unimpaired. 

Finding: The exterior changes to the ballroom and lobby will be reviewed in a separate design 

review/historic review. The remainder of the CMSDP does not anticipate any new additions or 

significant exterior alterations to the building. 

Conclusion: The CMSDP meets the historic landmark modification criteria as conditioned.  

 

PARKING VARIANCE REQUEST  

Variance Criteria That Apply –Newberg Development Code 15.215.040 

A. That strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified 

regulation would result in practical difficulty or unnecessary physical hardship 

inconsistent with the objectives of the zoning ordinance. 

Finding: The Development Code requires a minimum of 99 parking spaces for Phase 2 of the 

CCC, and 120 spaces for Phase 3 of the CCC. These requirements are based on a reduction for joint 

uses, as the ballroom and theater uses are not expected to overlap with each other or with the busy 

hours of the remainder of the center.  

The applicant has a 53 space parking lot, and a temporary gravel parking lot on the west side of the 

building with 26 spaces. If the gravel parking lot is used then two of the paved parking spaces cannot 

be used, for a net total of 77 paved and gravel parking spaces. The applicant's site plan shows that the 

gravel parking lot will remain in Phase 2, so the applicant needs a variance in Phase 2 to reduce the 

amount of required parking by 22 spaces, from 99 to 77 spaces. If the variance is approved then 

Phase 2 will meet the parking standards in the Development Code. 

If the gravel parking lot is removed in Phase 3 then the applicant needs a variance to reduce the 

parking requirement from 120 spaces to 53 spaces. If this variance is approved then Phase 3 will 

meet the parking standards in the Development Code.  

The objective of the zoning ordinance is to implement the Newberg Comprehensive Plan. Some of 

the relevant plan goals and policies are: 

 
28 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

 

J. Urban Design: 

n.  The City shall encourage innovative design and ensure that developments 

consider site characteristics and the impact on surrounding areas. 

m.  The City shall encourage flexibility in design review and interpretation of 

policies and regulations by ensuring that functional design and community benefit 

remain as the principal review criteria. Consider variance procedures where 

interpretation of regulations impede fulfillment of these criteria. 

Downtown policies: 

a. The City shall encourage the improvement of the central business district as the 

economic, cultural, business and governmental center of the Newberg area. 

Goal 5: Maximize pedestrian, bicycle and other non-motorized travel throughout the City. 

 

A variance is supported if the literal interpretation and enforcement of the code would create a 

hardship or practical difficult inconsistent with the objectives of the zoning ordinance. The applicant 

has requested a parking variance primarily based on two factors: there are available parking spaces in 

the nearby public parking lot and on adjacent streets, and they have drafted a parking management 

plan for large events. The applicant's parking survey demonstrated that most of the adjacent on street 

parking is readily available, and the city does intend that the 28 space public parking lot be used to 

help reduce the parking needs of nearby uses. The applicant's parking management plan has not been 

thoroughly tested, but it was used at least once for the Camellia Festival. The zoning ordinance and 

the Comprehensive plan intend that the downtown area be a vital economic and cultural center, and 

that downtown be a vital pedestrian area. The Comprehensive Plan also encourages flexibility in 

design review, as long as the design is functional and considers the benefit to the community. If the 

parking code is enforced literally then the CCC will not be able to create gardens and plazas on the 

west side of the CCC, which could reduce the vitality of the CCC site and reduce its contribution to 

the vitality of downtown. It would also encourage auto traffic at the CCC site, when the intent of the 

Comprehensive Plan is to strengthen pedestrian connections downtown. Strict enforcement of the 

code would create some hardships inconsistent with the objectives of the zoning ordinance. 

 

B. That there are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applicable 

to the property involved or to the intended use of the property which do not apply generally 

to other properties classified in the same zoning district.  

Finding: The property is in the Institutional zoning district. Most of the Institutional sites in the 

city (Providence Newberg Medical Center, Hazelden, George Fox University) are all much larger and 

have more opportunities for future expansion for buildings and parking. The CCC site is the smallest 

Institutional district in the city and is already mostly developed, so it faces exceptional circumstances 

and limitations which do not apply generally to other properties in the Institutional district. 

C. That strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified 

regulation would deprive the applicant of privileges enjoyed by the owners of other 

properties classified in the same zoning district. 

Finding: The other Institutional properties in the city have some flexibility in how they choose 

 
29 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

to develop because of their larger sites. If the parking standards are applied literally to the CCC then 

the applicant will have to pave the remainder of their site and will not have any design flexibility. 

D. That the granting of the variance will not constitute a grant of special 

privilege inconsistent with the limitations on other properties classified in the same 

zoning district. 

Finding: Other properties in the Institutional district have some flexibility with regards to 

parking standards. The parking for George Fox University is calculated on a campus-wide basis, for 

example, so that each campus building does not have to have its own parking lot. Granting a variance 

to allow the CCC to reduce the amount of required off-street parking would not constitute a grant of 

special privilege inconsistent with the limitations on other properties in the Institutional district.  

E. That the granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public 

health, safety or welfare or materially injurious to properties or improvements in 

the vicinity. 

Finding:  The Development Code requires a minimum of 99 parking spaces for Phase 2 of the CCC, 

and 120 spaces for Phase 3 of the CCC. The applicant has a 53 space parking lot, and a temporary 

gravel parking lot on the west side of the building with 26 spaces. If the gravel parking lot is used 

then two of the paved parking spaces cannot be used, for a net total of 77 paved and gravel parking 

spaces. The applicant's site plan shows that the gravel parking lot will remain in Phase 2, so the 

applicant needs, at a minimum, a variance to reduce the amount of required parking by 22 spaces, 

from 99 to 77 spaces. If the variance is approved then Phase 2 will meet the parking standards in the 

Development Code. 

If the gravel parking lot is removed in Phase 3 then the applicant needs a variance to reduce the 

parking requirement from 120 spaces to 53 spaces. 

There are 28 parking spaces in the nearby public parking lot, and 49 on-street parking spaces 

immediately adjacent to the site. The applicant's parking survey showed that most of the nearby on-

street parking is available most of the time, so relying on the on-street parking to meet some of the 

parking demand should be possible without harming the public welfare or being materially injurious 

to nearby properties. The applicant can mitigate some negative impacts by improving some sidewalk 

ramps near the site; since the applicant is relying on using on-street parking it is important to make it 

easy for people to park nearby and then walk to the site on the sidewalks. The proposed parking 

management plan will no doubt have some positive effect, but it is difficult to determine how 

effective it will be. There is also no reason not to take advantage of the temporary gravel parking lot 

in the short term, since the applicant plans to keep it in Phase 2 of the CCC. Based on the adjacent 

on-street parking spaces and keeping the gravel parking spaces, a variance to reduce the required 99 

parking spaces in Phase 2 to 77 spaces can be justified.  

It is more difficult to approve a variance for Phase 3 at this point, as the parking management plan 

may well change when the joint City/CPRD/CCC IGA is drawn up and the neighborhood advisory 

group meets. At this point the information we have does not support approving a variance to reduce 

 
30 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

the Phase 3 parking requirements to 53 spaces, as we cannot determine that it would not be injurious 

to neighboring properties. After the neighborhood advisory group has met and the IGA agreements 

are signed off then the applicant can apply for another Type II variance for Phase 3 to reduce the 

amount of required parking to 53 spaces and to remove the gravel parking, based on the adopted IGA 

parking management plan.  

Mitigation:  The parking variance application indicates the use of public on-street parking in the 

vicinity of the Cultural Center. The pedestrian accessibility to the on-street parking areas will require 

improvements at the following street intersections: 

1. School and Sheridan: SE curb return, SW curb return, and the NW curb return 

2. Blaine and Sheridan: NE curb return, SE curb return, and the SW curb return. 

3. Blaine and Sherman: SW curb return, NW curb return, and the NE curb return. 

4. Howard and Sherman: NE curb return, and the NW curb return. 

5. School and Sherman: NE curb return, and the SE curb return. 

 

The City of Newberg will construct the pedestrian accessibility improvements at intersections #1 and #2 

above as a part of the Sheridan Street Improvement project, currently planned for the summer of 2013.  

The applicant will be required to complete the pedestrian accessibility enhancements at intersections #3, 

#4, and #5 above, to meet current ADA standards. 

Conclusion: The application meets the variance criteria for Phase 2 as conditioned. The application does 

not meet the criteria for Phase 3 at this time, but may be able to in the future when the Cultural District 

IGA and parking management plan has been finalized, and the Neighborhood Advisory group has met. 

BALLROOM REMODEL & LOBBY ADDITION -  

DESIGN REVIEW/HISTORIC REVIEW 

 
A. Design Review; Criteria That Apply - Newberg Development Code 15.220.050(B): 

1. Design compatibility. The proposed design review request incorporates an architectural 

design which is compatible with and/or superior to existing or proposed uses and structures in 

the surrounding area.  This shall include, but not be limited to, building architecture, materials, 

colors, roof design, landscape design, and signage. 

Finding: As proposed, the lobby structure is compatible with structures in the immediate vicinity.  The 

structure is small, has been designed to match the existing gymnasium in style, and has a flat roof. The 

overall design will blend with the surrounding area by the use of landscaping buffering and screening.   

Storm run-off from the roofs will be required to be directed into the storm drain system as required by 

building codes.  Exterior lights will be directed onto the site so as to not adversely affect the adjoining 

properties. The photometric plan demonstrates that the proposed lighting will meet the light trespass 

standards. 

2. Parking and On-Site Circulation. Parking areas shall meet the requirements of NMC 

15.440.010. Parking studies may be required to determine if adequate parking and circulation 

 
31 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

are provided for uses not specifically identified in NMC 15.440.010. Provisions shall be made to 

provide efficient and adequate on-site circulation without using the public streets as part of the 

parking lot circulation pattern. Parking areas shall be designed so that vehicles can efficiently 

enter and exit the public streets with a minimum impact on the functioning of the public street. 

Finding: The parking requirements for Phase 2 have been addressed within the preceding variance 

findings.  

3. Setbacks and General Requirements. The proposal shall comply with NMC 15.415.010 

through 15.415.060 dealing with height restrictions and public access; and NMC 15.405.010 

through 15.405.040 and NMC 15.410.010 through 15.410.070 dealing with setbacks, coverage, 

vision clearance, and yard requirements. 

Finding:  The proposed lobby addition is one story, only extends a short distance from the building, and 

meets all height restrictions and public access requirements, setback, coverage, vision clearance and yard 

requirements of the Code. 

4. Landscaping Requirements. The proposal shall comply with NMC 15.420.010 dealing with 

landscape requirements and landscape screening. 

Finding: The applicant will add some landscaping near the lobby entrance that will enhance the 

appearance of the entrance and soften the lines of the structure. The landscaping meets the intent of the 

landscape requirements.  

5. Signs. Signs shall comply with NMC 15.435.010 et seq. dealing with signs. 

Finding: The proposed sign on the lobby entrance matches the sign over the front entrance in style. The 

size is well under the allowed limits, and meets the requirements of the Institutional zone. 

6. Manufactured Home, Mobile Home and RV Parks. Manufactured home, mobile home, and 

recreational vehicle parks shall also comply with the standards listed in NMC 15.445.050 et seq. 

in addition to the other criteria listed in this section. 

Finding: Not applicable. The development proposal is not a manufactured home, mobile home, or RV 

park. 

7. Zoning District Compliance. The proposed use shall be listed as a permitted or conditionally 

permitted use in the zoning district in which it is located as found in NMC 15.304.010 through 

15.328.040. Through this site review process, the director may make a determination that a use 

is determined to be similar to those listed in the applicable zoning district, if it is not already 

specifically listed. In this case, the director shall make a finding that the use shall not have any 

different or more detrimental effects upon the adjoining neighborhood area than those 

specifically listed. 

Finding: The site is zoned Institutional. A community center is an outright permitted use in this zone.  

 
32 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

8. Subdistrict Compliance. Properties located within subdistricts shall comply with the 

provisions of those subdistricts located in NMC 15.340.010 through 15.348.060. 

The site is within the Civic Corridor subdistrict. The following development standards apply: 

15.350.060 Development standards. 

In addition to the standards of NMC 15.220.080, the following development standards shall 

apply to new development or redevelopment within the civic corridor overlay subdistrict. 

A. Elements of the Street-Facing Facade. 

1. Base, Field, and Crown. For new or redeveloped buildings, all street-facing facades shall be 

clearly divided into three separate elements: base, field and crown. Separations shall be made 

by changes in material or by shifts in the depth of the facade. Merely painting the facade 

different colors without some other physical delineation is not sufficient. For new or 

redeveloped buildings, elements of the street-facing facade shall comply with the standards 

below: 

a. Base. The base of the facade shall be a maximum of four feet for single-story buildings, a 

maximum of one story for two- to four-story buildings, and a maximum of two stories for 

buildings greater than four stories. Bases shall be expressed in heavier-appearing materials 

(e.g., stone or brick) and have a more horizontal emphasis. 

b. Field. The field of a facade is all the floors between the base and the crown. The field 

element shall be expressed as a series of repetitive vertical elements that include windows, 

pilasters and trim. 

c. Crown. The crown can be expressed as part of the top floor of the building or as a decorative 

cornice. Crowns shall be more elaborate than the field element of the facade and shall 

incorporate detailed elements that articulate the top of the building.  

 

Finding: The proposed lobby addition to the ballroom is a small building with a flat roof, storefront 

window systems with a bronze finish, and stained cedar siding. The new overhead door on the west side 

of the ballroom is glass with bronze finished window frames. These improvements do not meet the 

base/field/crown standards, but it should be noted that the existing building also does not meet these 

standards. The applicant has attempted to balance the design to meet the historic standards and keep the 

improvements compatible with the building. The improvements do not worsen the status of the existing 

building in regards to the base/field/crown standards. 

 

B. Street-Facing Facade Articulation. 

1. Detail at First Floor. Buildings that have highly detailed ground floors contribute 

significantly to the pedestrian experience. To accomplish this desirable characteristic, ground-

floor elements like window trim, pilaster ornamentation, the texture of the base material, and 

even whimsical sculptural pieces embedded in the facade like busts or reliefs are highly 

encouraged. Especially desirable are details that relate to the history or culture of the 

surrounding region. 

2. Cornice Treatment. Flat-roof buildings shall have cornices. Cornices shall have a combined 

width plus depth of at least three feet. An additional one foot shall be added to this required 

total for every story above one. 

 

 
33 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

 

C. Street-Facing Windows – Depth of Windows. Windows shall be recessed at least three inches 

from the general plane of the facade. This creates shadow lines and visual interest, giving the 

facade the perception of depth. Depth in the facade promotes the perception of high quality and 

durable construction, and contributes to the district’s historic character. 

D. Street-Facing Facade Materials. 

1. Dominant Material. All facades shall be comprised primarily of brick. The color of the brick 

shall be a reddish-brown of generally the same tonal quality as the existing brick buildings 

within the civic corridor. When used as a veneer material, the brick must be at least two and 

one-half inches thick. Additional materials are allowed as accents. 

2. Allowed Accent Materials. Allowed accent materials include horizontal wood and 

cementitious lap siding, horizontal board and batten siding, shingles, shakes, and copper or 

brass. Lap siding, shingles, and shakes shall leave exposed a maximum of six inches to the 

weather. In board and batten siding, battens shall be spaced at most eight inches on center. In 

addition, rusticated concrete block, or stone masonry is allowed, but when used as a veneer 

material, it must be at least two and one-half inches thick. Cement-based stucco is allowed. 

3. Changes in Material. Brick street-facing facades shall return at least 18 inches around 

exposed side walls. 

 

Finding: The lobby addition is one story tall. While it is a simple design and is not detailed it will add 

interest to the flat rear wall of the ballroom and improve the appearance of the north façade. The 

storefront window systems provide window depth and visual interest. The lobby façade will be primarily 

stained cedar wood siding. While it does not have a brick façade, it is a small addition and it is true that 

the north façade of the Cultural Center building will still be primarily brick. 

 

E. Signage Standards. In addition to the C-3 signage requirements of NMC 15.435.010 through 

15.435.120, to encourage the historic character of the civic corridor as described in NMC 

15.350.010, sign lettering within the civic corridor shall not exceed 12 inches in height, and 

signs shall include at least one of the following elements: 

1. The sign includes a frame, background or lettering in copper, bronze or brass in natural 

finishes, comprising at least five percent of the sign face. 

2. The sign is a freestanding brick monument sign. 

3. The sign lettering is in a raised relief, and is constructed of either naturally finished metal or 

white-painted wood (or material that appears to be wood). 

4. The sign lettering is engraved in either metal or masonry. 

5. The sign is attached to a mounting bracket and allowed to swing freely. [Ord. 2744 § 1 (Exh. 

A), 7-18-11; Ord. 2561, 4-1-02. Code 2001 § 151.526.6.] 

 

Finding:  The proposed sign matches the style of the sign over the front entrance to the CCC. The sign 

earns more than 10 points on the C-3 point system and meets the C-3 standards. The letters are less than 

12 inches tall, are bronze raised letters, and include two of the listed design elements. The sign meets the 

Civic Corridor standards as proposed.  

9. Alternative Circulation, Roadway Frontage Improvements and Utility Improvements. Where 

applicable, new developments shall provide for access for vehicles and pedestrians to adjacent 

 
34 of 251

http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15435.html#15.435.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15435.html#15.435.120
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15350.html#15.350.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=257
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=257
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=257
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=257
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=257
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=257
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=257
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=257
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=257
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/html/ords/Ord2744.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/or/newberg/html/ords/Ord2561.pdf


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

properties which are currently developed or will be developed in the future. This may be 

accomplished through the provision of local public streets or private access and utility 

easements. At the time of development of a parcel, provisions shall be made to develop the 

adjacent street frontage in accordance with city street standards and the standards contained in 

the transportation plan. At the discretion of the city, these improvements may be deferred 

through use of a deferred improvement agreement or other form of security. 

Finding:  The applicant has not proposed any frontage or utility improvements as part of Phase 2. As 

noted in the CMSDP review above, the CMSDP does show improvements on Sheridan Street; the 

western half will be widened to allow additional on-street parking, the central portion will be integrated 

with the building forecourt, and the entire length will be repaved. The city has budgeted funds to improve 

this section of Sheridan Street in 2013, and at that time will underground the overhead utility line and 

make necessary ADA sidewalk and ramp improvements. 

Undergrounding utility lines: The applicant was conditioned to underground the single overhead utility 

line on Sherman Street, and will complete that in 2013 when the Sheridan Street improvements are 

constructed. There are also overhead lines on School Street, which the code requires to be undergrounded 

unless the cost will be extraordinarily expensive. There are multiple overhead lines on School Street, and 

the poles are connected into a network of east-west and north-south lines. Two of the poles also serve as 

light poles. If the utility lines were undergrounded on the School Street frontage it would likely only 

eliminate one utility pole, as the others would be required to be retained and tethered with cables to 

support the surrounding network of overhead lines. Several utility lines would need to be extended under 

the street to maintain service to adjacent homes. Staff believes that undergrounding the School Street 

overhead lines will be extraordinarily expensive, and that the project therefore meets the criteria for an 

exception to the undergrounding requirement on School Street. The applicant will be adding street trees 

on School Street, which will mitigate the appearance of the overhead utility lines. 

10. Traffic Study Improvements. If a traffic study is required, improvements identified in the 

traffic study shall be implemented as required by the director. 

Finding:  Not applicable - No new traffic study is required at this time as fewer than 40 trips per PM 

peak hour will occur as a result of this project.   

 

 
35 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

A. Historic Landmark Review Criteria That Apply - Newberg Development Code 15.344.030. 

The Planning Commission, in considering applications for permit approval for any alteration, 

shall base their decision on substantial compliance with the following criteria and guidelines. 

a. The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved.  The removal of 

historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be 

avoided.  Specific design elements which must be addressed include: 

 i. Average setback.  When a new structure is being constructed on an infill lot, the 

front yard setback shall be the same as the buildings on either side.  When the front setbacks of 

the adjacent buildings are different, the front setback of the new structure shall be an average 

of the two. 

 ii. Architectural elements.  The design shall incorporate architectural elements of the 

city’s historic styles, including Queen Anne, Colonial Revival, Dutch Colonial Revival, and 

Bungalow styles.  Ideally, the architectural elements should reflect and/or be compatible with 

the style of other nearby historic structures.  Typical design elements which should be 

considered include, but are not limited to, “crippled hip” roofs, Palladian-style windows, roof 

eave brackets, roof dormers, and decorative trim boards. 

 iii. Building orientation.  The main entrance of the new structure shall be oriented to 

the street.  Construction of a porch is encouraged but not required.  Such a porch shall be at 

least six feet in depth.   

 iv. Vehicle parking/storage.  Garages and carports shall be set back from the front 

facade of the primary structure and shall relate to the primary structure in terms of design and 

building materials. 

 v. Fences.  Fences shall be built of materials which are compatible with the design 

and materials used in the primary structure. 

Finding: The proposed lobby addition is small, and has a flat roof to match the gymnasium/ballroom. 

The lobby has a simple modern design, which matches the design of the ballroom area. The stained cedar 

siding does not match the brick walls of the ballroom, but is a relatively small portion of the north 

façade. The bronze-finished storefront windows match the windows on the main building. The 

landscaping adjacent to the building buffers the view of the lobby addition and helps it blend with the 

site. The lobby extends beyond the building and extends the average setback but is very similar in scale 

to the additions that were added to the front of the building years ago (for reference, the Chamber of 

Commerce used to be located in one of the front additions). The entrance is oriented to the street. The 

new overhead door on the western façade of the ballroom is also oriented to the street, and matches the 

style and materials of the existing windows on the western façade. 

b. Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use.  

Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features 

or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken. 

Finding: The proposed lobby addition and ballroom overhead door do not create a false sense of 

historical development. 

c. Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired historic significance 

in their own right shall be retained and preserved. 

 
36 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

Finding: The gymnasium was added to the original building in the 1950s, and has acquired historic 

significance in its own right. The lobby addition and western overhead door are intended to be 

compatible with the style of the gymnasium structure and existing windows.  

d. Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship 

that characterize a historic property shall be preserved to the extent possible. 

Finding: The proposed changes do not remove distinctive exterior features of the existing building. 
  

e. Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced.  Where the severity 

of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall reasonably 

match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where possible, materials. 

 Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated by documentary, physical, or pictorial 

evidence. 
 

Finding: The proposed changes are additions, and are not replacing deteriorated historic features. 
 

f. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause extensive damage to 

historic materials shall not be used.  The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be 

undertaken using the gentlest means possible. 
 

Finding: No sandblasting or harsh cleaning methods are proposed. 
 

g. Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and preserved. 

 If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be undertaken. 
 

Finding: There are no known significant archeological resources on the site. 
 

h. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy historic 

character of the property.  The new work shall be differentiated from the old and shall be 

compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect the historic 

integrity of the property and its environment. 
 

Finding:   The new addition is similar in mass and scale to the previous additions that were added to the 

front of the CCC. The addition uses stained cedar siding, which serves to differentiate it from the 

existing building. The siding is very different from the brick but is a relatively small portion of the north 

façade and does not destroy the historic character of the site. 
 

i. New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a manner 

that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its 

environment would be unimpaired. 
 

Finding: While it is unlikely that the lobby addition would ever be removed, it would be possible to 

remove it without impairing the form of the historic property. 

Conclusion 

Based on the above mentioned findings, the application meets the criteria required within the 

Newberg Development Code Sections 15.220.050(B) and 15.344.030. 

 
37 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

Exhibit “B” to Planning Commission Order 2012-04 

Conditions for –File HISD-12-002/DR2-12-010/VAR-12-001 

Chehalem Cultural Center: Concept Master Site Development Plan, Parking 

Variance, Ballroom Remodel 
 

A. THE FOLLOWING MUST BE COMPLETED BEFORE THE CITY WILL ISSUE A 

BUILDING PERMIT: 

1. Permit Submittal:  Submit a building permit application, two (2) complete working 

drawing sets of the proposed project, two (2) complete electrical plans, and two (2) 

copies of a revised site plan.  Show all the features of the plan approved through 

design review, including the following: 

a. Mechanical details 

b. O.S.S.C. Chapter 11 (ADA) requirements relating to access from the public 

way, parking spaces and signage 

c. Structural details 

d. Utility plan 

 

2. Conditions of Approval:  Either write or otherwise permanently affix the conditions 

of approval contained within this report onto the first page of the plans submitted for 

building permit review. 

3. Street trees: Submit a landscaping plan for review and approval showing street trees 

along the eastern section of Sherman Street and along School Street.  

4. Disabled/ADA Requirements:  Coordinate with the Building Division to comply 

with O.S.S.C. Chapter 11 requirements. 

5. Gravel parking:  The gravel overflow parking lot shall be maintained on the site as 

part of Phase 2. It may be able to be removed at a later date if a later variance 

determines there is adequate parking on the site and the gravel parking lot is not 

needed.  

B. THE FOLLOWING MUST BE ACCOMPLISHED PRIOR TO OCCUPANCY 

1. ADA sidewalk improvements: The pedestrian accessibility to the on-street parking 

areas will require improvements at the following street intersections: 

1. School and Sheridan: SE curb return, SW curb return, and the NW curb return 

2. Blaine and Sheridan: NE curb return, SE curb return, and the SW curb return. 

3. Blaine and Sherman: SW curb return, NW curb return, and the NE curb return. 

4. Howard and Sherman: NE curb return, and the NW curb return. 

5. School and Sherman: NE curb return, and the SE curb return. 

 
38 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

 

The City of Newberg will construct the pedestrian accessibility improvements at 

intersections #1 and #2 above as a part of the Sheridan Street Improvement project, 

currently planned for the summer of 2013.  The applicant will be required to complete the 

pedestrian accessibility enhancements at intersections #3, #4, and #5 above, to meet 

current ADA standards. 

2. Fire Department Requirements:  This project is subject to compliance with all Fire 

Department standards relating to access and fire protection.  

3. Design Review Conditions:  Contact the Planning Division (503-537-1240) to verify 

that all design review conditions have been completed. 

4. Site Inspection:  Contact the Building Division (503-537-1240) for Building, 

Mechanical, and Plumbing final inspections.  Contact the Fire Department (503-537-

1260) for Fire Safety final inspections.  Contact Yamhill County (503-538-7302) for 

electrical final inspections.  Contact the Planning Division (503-537-1240) for 

landscaping final inspections.  

C. DEVELOPMENT NOTES 

1. The Concept Master Site Development Plan approval will expire in 10 years. Future 

phases of the CCC improvements will require a Type II design review/Type I historic 

review application. 

2. The undergrounding of the overhead line on Sherman Street must be completed prior 

to the completion of the Sheridan Street improvements, which are expected to be 

completed in 2013, per a previous design review. 

3. Stormwater drainage: The city's 2001 Drainage Master Plan identifies a downstream 

deficiency in the conveyance system in Hancock Street between School Street and 

Meridian Street; Capital Improvement Project #H7.  The downstream deficiency shall 

either be repaired per the Drainage Master Plan, or stormwater detention facilities 

shall be constructed to store the runoff from any newly created impervious surface.  

The detention system shall store the runoff volume between the pre-developed and 

post developed site flows for the 2, 5, 10, and 25 year storm events. Future phases of 

the CMSDP that create new impervious surfaces will be required to address 

stormwater detention issues.  

4. Phase III parking variance & Cultural District IGA: After the neighborhood advisory 

group has met and the IGA agreements are signed off then the applicant can apply for 

another Type II variance for Phase 3 to reduce the amount of required parking to 53 

spaces and to remove the gravel parking, based on the adopted IGA parking 

management plan. 

 
39 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

Attachment 1:  Aerial Photo 
 

 
40 of 251



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.H\2012\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001. CCC master plan and ballroom\HISD-12-002.DR2-12-010.VAR-12-001 CCC staff report - master plan-ballroom.doc 

Attachment 2:  Site Plan 

 
 

 
41 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
42 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
43 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
44 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
45 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
46 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
47 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
48 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
49 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
50 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
51 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
52 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
53 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
54 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
55 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
56 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
57 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
58 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
59 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
60 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
61 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
62 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
63 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
64 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
65 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
66 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
67 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
68 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
69 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
70 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
71 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
72 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
73 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
74 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
75 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
76 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
77 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
78 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
79 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
80 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
81 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
82 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
83 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
84 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
85 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
86 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
87 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
88 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
89 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
90 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
91 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
92 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
93 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
94 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
95 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
96 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
97 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
98 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
99 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
100 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
101 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
102 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
103 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
104 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
105 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
106 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
107 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
108 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
109 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
110 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
111 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
112 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
113 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
114 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
115 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
116 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
117 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
118 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
119 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
120 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
121 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
122 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
123 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
124 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
125 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
126 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
127 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
128 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
129 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
130 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
131 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
132 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
133 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
134 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
135 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
136 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
137 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
138 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
139 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
140 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
141 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
142 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
143 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
144 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
145 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
146 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
147 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
148 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
149 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
150 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
151 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
152 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
153 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
154 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
155 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
156 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
157 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
158 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
159 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
160 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
161 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
162 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
163 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
164 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
165 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
166 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
167 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
168 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
169 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
170 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
171 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
172 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
173 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
174 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
175 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
176 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
177 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
178 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
179 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
180 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
181 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
182 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
183 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
184 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
185 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
186 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
187 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
188 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
189 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
190 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
191 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
192 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
193 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
194 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
195 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
196 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
197 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
198 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
199 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
200 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
201 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
202 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
203 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
204 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
205 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
206 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
207 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
208 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
209 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
210 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
211 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
212 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
213 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
214 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
215 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
216 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
217 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
218 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
219 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
220 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
221 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
222 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
223 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
224 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
225 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
226 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
227 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
228 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
229 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
230 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
231 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
232 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
233 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
234 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
235 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
236 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
237 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
238 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
239 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
240 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
241 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
242 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
243 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
244 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
245 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
246 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
247 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
248 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
249 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
250 of 251



ATTACHMENT 3

 
251 of 251


	2012-0712 PC Agenda.pdf
	Planning Commission Minutes 2012-0614
	OUTLINE FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 2012 plus ORS197
	Attachment 3. CCC application.pdf
	CCC A B.pdf
	C1
	C2
	C3
	CCC D




